User Manual ELEGOO 3D Slicing Software

V1.8

Table of Contents
I. Software Installation
II. Software Initialization
III. Software Function Introduction
[Software Main Interface]7
[Preparation Interface]7
Toolbar
[Platform Preview]21
[3D Navigator]21
[Printer]
[Filament]21
[Process]
[Print Parameters]22
[Printing Method]
[Device Connection]

I. Software Installation

1. Find the installation package suitable for your computer system on the included USB drive and double-click to install with the left mouse button.

ElegooSlicer_Mac_arm64_V1.1.7.3.dmg	2025/2/18 17:03	183,963 KB
ElegooSlicer_Mac_x86_64_V1.1.7.3.dmg	2025/2/18 17:03	186,132 KB
👒 ElegooSlicer_Windows_Installer_V1.1.7.3.exe	2025/2/18 17:03	112,724 KB

For example: If your computer runs on Windows, please select this option.

2. Click "Next."



3. Click "I Agree."

License	Agreement	
Please	review the license terms before installi	ng ElegooSlicer.
Press Page Down to see the rest of t	he agreement.	
GNU AFFERO GENERAL Version 3, 19 Novemb	PUBLIC LICENSE er 2007	^
Copyright (C) 2007 Free Software F Everyone is permitted to copy and o of this license document, but chang	Foundation, Inc. < <u>http://fsf.org/</u> > distribute verbatim copies ing it is not allowed.	
Preamble		
The GNU Affero General Public Lice software and other kinds of works,	nse is a free, copyleft license for specifically designed to ensure	Ŷ
If you accept the terms of the agree	ment, dick I Agree to continue. You ma	ust accept the
agreement a notal Elegodolice i		
Icoff Toctall Sucham u2:10		

[👒] ElegooSlicer_Windows_Installer_V1.1.7.3.exe

4. Choose your installation location, then click "Next."

Choose	Install Location		
Choose	the folder in which to ins	tall ElegooSlicer.	
Setup will install ElegooSlicer in the fo and select another folder. Click Next	Illowing folder. To install i to continue.	n a different folde	er, click Browse
Destination Folder			
C:\Program Files\ElegooSlicer		Brou	wse
C:\Program Files\ElegooSlicer		Brow	wse
C:\Program Files\ElegooSlicer Space required: 195.8 MB Space available: 192.4 GB		Brot	WSe
C:\Program Files\ElegooSlicer Space required: 195.8 MB Space available: 192.4 GB		Brou	wse

5. Click "Install."

Choose Start Me	nu Folder	
Choose a Start Me	enu folder for the ElegooSlice	shortcuts.
Select the Start Menu folder in which you would can also enter a name to create a new folder.	like to create the program's s	hortcuts. You
ElegooSlicer		
Accessories Accessories Administrative Tools Maintenance StartUp System Tools Windows PowerShell WinRAR WPS Office		
Do not create shortcuts soft Install System v3.10		

Installing... Please wait.

	Installing			
	Please wait	while ElegooSlicer is b	eing installed.	
Extract: elegoo_orange	estorm_giga_buildp	late_texture.png		
Show details				
Illeaft Techall Cushees u.C.	10			
ulisui curiscali system va,				

6. Click "Finish."



II. Software Initialization

1. Double-click the ElegooSlicer icon on your computer desktop with the left mouse button to open the software.



Startup Screen



2. Click "Get Started" to proceed.



3. Select your login region, then click "Next."

Please select your login region	
Asia-Pacific	
China Europe	
North America	
Others	
	Next

4. Choose your printer, then click "Next."

	Printer S	Selection	
Device keyword			
Elegoo			All Clear all
Elegoo Centauri Carbon	Elegoo OrangeStorm	Elegoo Neptune 4 Max	
0.4mm nozzle	Giga	0.4mm nozzle	
0.2mm nozzle	0.6mm nozzle	0.2mm nozzle	
0.6mm nozzle	0.4mm nozzle	0.6mm nozzle	
0.8mm nozzle	0.8mm nozzle	0.8mm nozzle	
	1.0mm nozzle	1.0mm nozzle	
	7	3	
			Back

5. Select the filaments you will be using, then click "Finish."

	Filament Selection				
Filament type: 🛛 All Vendor: 🖉 All	🗹 PLA 🗹 TPU 🗹 ASA 🖤 PETG 🗹 PLA-CF				
All Clear all					
Elegoo ASA	Elegoo TPU 95A				
Elegoo PETG PRO					
🗹 Elegoo PLA					
🗹 Elegoo PLA Matte					
🗹 Elegoo PLA PRO					
🗹 Elegoo PLA Silk					
Elegoo PLA+					
Elegoo PLA-CF					
Elegoo RAPID PETG					
Elegoo RAPID PLA+					
	Back				

III. Software Function Introduction

[Software Main Interface]

다 File 💵 🛱 5 C 🕄 Calibration	🗈 Device 🗐 Project	Unsted — O	×	Option bar Menu bar
New Project Create new project	Open Project 3mf			
Recently opened				
				Shortcut bar

[Preparation Interface]



[Toolbar]



Add a new model.

→ ↑ A This PC > Desktop > New folder	× Ö	Search New folder	ß
ganize - New folder		E • 1	
Quick access OneDrive			
This PC			
3D Objects 3DBenchy			
Desktop			
Documents			
🖶 Downloads			
Music			
E Pictures			
Videos			
🛓 system (C:)			
≙ CD Drive (D:) Wi			
🚊 CD Drive (D:) Wire 🧹			
File name:	~	Supported files (*.3mf, *.stl,	*.ol
		Onen Can	cel

-	-	Н	7
-		1	Ð

Add plate

Add a new print platform, as shown in the image below.





[Auto orient]

Find the optimal orientation based on several features of the selected object.

12	-	
D	1	
15	$\mathcal{I}\mathcal{U}$	
10	100	

[Arrange all objects]

Arrange all objects on the platform.



Settings menu

[Spacing]

Model-to-model spacing during auto-arrangement.







Spacing at 30



When enabled, models will be automatically rotated for the optimal orientation during auto-arrangement.



Not enabled



Enabled

[Allow multiple materials on same plate]

When allowed, models using different filaments will be placed on the same plate (models with significantly different print parameters will still be separated). When not allowed, models using different filaments will be placed on separate plates.



Allowed (yellow represents other filaments)



Not Allowed (yellow represents other filaments)

[Align to Y axis]

Align models along the Y-axis. When unchecked, it defaults to the X-axis.



Menu bar

Adaptive	Quality / Speed	0.50
Smooth	Radius	- 5
Keep n	nin	

Adaptive: Calculate layer configurations based on detail/speed settings.

Smooth: Make the contours of variable layer height smooth. The larger the radius, the smoother the curve.

Keep min: When checked, the minimum layer height will not be smoothed out and will be maintained at the minimum value.

? : Click the blue question mark for related operation steps.

Reset: Reset all settings.

[Adjusting bar]

Use the mouse to adjust settings here. Click the blue question mark for related operation instructions.

00	
00	

[Split to objects]

Split a single model into distinct objects for individual manipulation; this option is disabled for non-composite models.

Example: After applying this function to the model below, the initial single unified model is split into multiple objects. Each object can be moved independently, and the printing parameters for each individual object can be separately adjusted in the Process section.





[Split to parts]

Divide a single model into distinct parts; this option is unavailable when the model is a single entity. Contrary to "Split into objects," this function separates the model into distinct parts instead of individual objects.



Use the mouse to drag the model and move it along the three axes on the platform or input precise coordinates for specific positioning.





[Rotate]

Rotate the model along the three axes using the mouse or input exact angles within the coordinate system for accurate and controlled rotation.





[Scale]

Adjust the model's size along the three axes by dragging with the mouse or input multipliers/exact sizes in the coordinate system to achieve the desired size. Uniform scale: When enabled, adjustments on one axis synchronize changes across all axes.





[Lay on face]

Choose a face of the model as the base for placement on the platform.



Cut the model at a specific height.



L	-		L
2	0		
2	4	-	1
	2		

[Boolean operation]

Execute union/intersection/difference operations on the model.

Instructions:

1. Right-click on the model and choose "Add Negative Part."



For instance, select a sphere as shown below, and move it to the appropriate position.



2. Re-select the original model (cube) and click on Boolean operation.



3. Set Part 1 as the original model (cube) and Part 2 as the negative part (sphere), then select the desired operation.



Preview of various operations



Union



Difference



Difference (Delete input)



Intersection



Intersection (Delete input)

	-	-	'n.
ш		1	d.
Ш		4	1.
ш		Ĺ	1

[Support painting]

Mark areas on the model where support structures are needed, which will be printed in these areas subsequently.

Tool type	
00 5	
On overhangs only	
Pen size	1.00
Highlight overhangs	0.00
Section view	0.00
Prase all painting	

Example:



Original model



Draw a support at the ear position (green)

Tool type: Various drawing tools.
On overhangs only: When enabled, drawing is effective only for overhang areas.
Pen size: Adjust different pen sizes.
Highlight overhangs: Adjust the threshold for highlighting overhang areas.
Section view: Display cross-sectional views of the model from different angles.
? : Click the blue question mark for related

operation methods. Erase all painting: Reset all previous

paintings.



Original support position (green)



New support

 1.5		L
- 20		L
 1.5	1.14	÷
 - 61	1	1
1	. D.	J

☐ [Seam painting]

Mark areas on the model to control where Z-seams are visible or concealed. Z-seams will be printed according to these markings.

Brush shape	
\bigcirc	
Brush size	1.00
Section view	0.00
Vertical	
Prase all painting	



Original model (cube)



Z-seam painting (green) (vertical enabled)



Z-seam painting (green) (vertical disabled)

Brush shape: Choose between round or spherical. Brush size: Adjust the brush size.

Section view: Adjust the model's cross-sectional view. Vertical: Enable this option to restrict the brush to vertical movement only.

? Click the blue question mark for related operation

methods.

Erase all painting: Reset all previous paintings.



Original Z-seam (type: random)



Preview of Z-seam painting (green) (vertical enabled)



Preview of Z-seam painting (green) (vertical disabled)



Create embossed text on the model by entering the desired text.

Embossed text	Embossed text Font Segoe UI IB Height 9.0 mm + Depth 1.00 mm + Advanced Style NORMAL DEF Operation Operation Join Cut Modifier
Elegoo	Elegoo Font v Segoe UI I B Height 9.0 mm - + Depth 1.00 mm - + > Advanced Style v NORMAL C = E

Calculate the angle and distance between two selected points on the model.

Instructions

1. Select the model first, then click on this function.

[Measure]



2. Choose the first point, which can be a vertex, edge, or plane.



3. Then select the second point, which can also be a vertex, edge, or plane, to obtain the measurement result.





[Assembly view]

To display the model in an assembly view, split it with "Split to objects/Split to parts" functions, and then adjust the explode ratio to view the exploded assembly.



(Platform Preview)

Real-time preview of the simulated model's orientation and printing effects on the heated bed.

[3D Navigator]

Quickly switch views in different orientations using this feature.

[Printer]

Select different printers here.



[Filament]

Select different filaments here.

(((0	Filament	(((+	(((-	-0
1	~ Elegoo PLA			Ø

[Process]

Select different process types here, and the corresponding printing parameters will change accordingly.



[Print Parameters]

[Quality]



[Layer height]

The height of each layer of the model should be between 25% and 75% of the nozzle diameter. A smaller value results in finer surface details but longer print times, while a larger value leads to rougher surfaces and shorter print times.

Example: Below are simulated effects of a cube model with different layer heights.



[First layer height]

This refers to the height of the first layer printed on the platform. A slightly higher first layer can improve adhesion to the heated bed.

[Seam]

Understanding what a seam is: When printing each layer of a model, there are specific starting and ending points. Due to various reasons, achieving a seamless closure at these points can be challenging. Consequently, as the layers build up, a visible gap can emerge where these points meet. This visible gap is commonly referred to as a seam or "zipper," a normal occurrence that can be mitigated through adjustments but not completely eliminated.



[Seam position]

[Nearest]

The starting point of the next layer is the last stopping point of the nozzle on the model from the previous layer.

Pros: Less path deviation, saving print time.

Cons: Seam points are randomly generated on the model with changing print positions.

Note: Randomness isn't necessarily negative. If each seam point is well controlled, this dispersed pattern can prevent flaws from accumulating significantly, sometimes resulting in near-perfect models. However, poor control will lead to visible defects randomly scattered on the model surface.

Example:



"Nearest" type seam points (white dots in the

image)





Ending point of the previous layer

Starting point of the next layer

[Aligned]

In this mode, the nozzle moves more paths to align the seam points at the same position for each layer.

Pros: Generally used as an alternative for poorly adjusted seam points, as despite not being perfect, they are concentrated together without damaging other surfaces of your model. If controlled effectively, it can result in a fairly perfect model.

Cons: Increased print time due to additional nozzle movement for seam alignment.

Example:



"Aligned" type seam points (white in the image)



Ending point of the previous layer



Starting point of the next layer

[Back]

Pros: Seam points are strategically concentrated on the backside of the plate (not the back of the model, irrespective of model orientation). This option ensures that even if the seam handling is less than perfect, it does not impact the model's frontal appearance, particularly beneficial for character, animal, or display models requiring a pronounced frontal effect. With the model correctly positioned, the frontal formation remains undisturbed, maintaining the desired front-facing outcome.

Cons: Back works similarly to Aligned, resulting in similar drawbacks with centralized seam points.

[Random]

Pros & Cons: Refer to the explanation of the Nearest mode above. Generally efficient distribution reduces seam visibility for better results, while poor placement worsens seam appearance, negatively affecting overall print quality. The starting and ending point are also randomized. Example:





Ending point of the previous layer



Starting point of the next layer

"Random" type seam points (white dots in the image)

[Precision]

[Precise outer wall size]

This section refers to the official OrcaSlicer documentation. You can find the original link here: <u>https://github.com/SoftFever/OrcaSlicer/wiki/Precise-wall</u>.

"The 'Precise Wall' is a distinctive feature introduced by OrcaSlicer, aimed at improving the dimensional accuracy of prints and minimizing layer inconsistencies by slightly increasing the spacing between the outer wall and the inner wall.

Below is a technical explanation of how this feature works. First, it's important to understand some basic concepts like flow, extrusion width, and space. Slic3r has an excellent document that covers these topics in detail. You can refer to this article: https://manual.slic3r.org/advanced/flow-math.

Now, let's dive into the specifics. Slic3r and its forks, such as PrusaSlicer, SuperSlicer, and OrcaSlicer, assume that the extrusion path has an oval shape, which accounts for the overlaps. For example, if we set the wall width to 0.4 mm and the layer height to 0.2 mm, the combined thickness of two walls laid side by side is 0.714 mm instead of 0.8 mm due to the overlapping.



This approach enhances the strength of 3D-printed parts. However, it does have some side effects. For instance, when the inner-outer wall order is used, the outer wall can be pushed outside, leading to potential size inaccuracy and more layer inconsistency.

It's important to keep in mind that this approach to handling flow is specific to Slic3r and its forks. Other slicing software, such as Cura, assumes that the extrusion path is rectangular and, therefore, does not include overlapping. Two 0.4 mm walls will result in a 0.8 mm shell thickness in Cura. OrcaSlicer adheres to Slic3r's approach to handling flow. To address the downsides mentioned earlier, OrcaSlicer introduced the 'Precise Wall' feature. When this feature is enabled in OrcaSlicer, the overlap between the outer wall and its adjacent inner wall is set to zero. This ensures that the overall strength of the printed part is unaffected, while the size accuracy and layer consistency are improved."

[Walls and surfaces]

In this context, the term "walls" specifically refers to the model's outer shell.

[Only one wall on top surfaces]

Generally, the top of the model consists of two or more wall layers. With this feature, only one wall layer is printed, with the remaining parts filled or made solid, contributing to a more consistent and visually pleasing top surface.

[Only one wall on first layer]

While similar to having a single wall on the top surface, using only a single wall for the first layer is not recommended. This is because subsequent model constructions rely heavily on the printing quality of the first layer. The poor stability of the outer wall of the first layer can easily lead to printing failures. Moreover, the first layer is typically dense enough to ensure a smooth bottom, reducing the need for a single-wall structure.

[Strength]

Quality Strength Supp	ort Others
Walls	
Wall loops	÷ 2
Top/bottom shells	
Top surface pattern	Monotonic
Top shell layers	🔒 5 layers
Top shell thickness	1 mm
Bottom surface pattern	Monotonic
Bottom shell layers	🗘 4 layers
Bottom shell thickness	0.8 mm
Infill	
Sparse infill density	15 %
Sparse infill pattern	Cubic
Internal solid infill pattern	Monotonic

[Walls]

In general, a model consists of a bottom, a top, a shell, and internal infill. In this context, the term "walls" specifically refers to the model's outer shell.



[Wall loops]

It is recommended to set a minimum of 2 wall loops. Too few loops can lead to a fragile outer shell, while too many loops can unnecessarily increase print time.

Example: Below is a preview showing a hollow model's cross-sectional with 1, 2, and 3 wall loops from left to right.



【Top/bottom shells】

[Top surface pattern]

This refers to the pattern used to fill the top surface. Below are eight types illustrated, with rectilinear, monotonic, monotonic line, and aligned rectilinear appearing almost identical when densely arranged.



[Top shell layers]

The recommended range for top shell layers is between 3 and 5. Increasing the number of layers can result in a denser top surface and a smoother appearance. Avoid excessive layers to prevent material wastage.

[Top shell thickness]

This refers to the thickness of the solid top infill. If the calculated thickness (top shell layers * layer height) is less than this value, the software will automatically increase the top shell layers. A value of 0 disables this setting, making the top shell thickness solely determined by the top shell layers.

[Bottom surface pattern]

[Bottom shell layers]

[Bottom shell thickness]

In line with the top settings detailed earlier, the above three options apply specifically to the bottom surface.

【Infill】

[Sparse infill density]

Models are typically not solid inside to save material and time. A density of 15% to 20% is usually sufficient to support most model structures. See the diagrams below for different infill densities:



[Sparse infill pattern]

Infill can be set to different patterns, as shown in the illustrations below:



[Internal solid infill pattern]

This refers to the pattern used for solid infill inside, which is the same as the top shell pattern.

[Support]

Quality	Strength	Speed	Support	Others	Notes
Suppor	t				
Enable s	support				
Туре		~ Normal(auto)			
Style		∽ Default			
Threshold angle First layer density		⊖ 30 °			
		90	%		
First lay	First layer expansion		2	mm	
On build	d plate only	/			
Remove	small over	hangs			

When there are significant overhangs or bridges in the model, it is essential to add proper supports during printing to prevent print failures caused by the collapse of these sections.



[Enable support]

Check to enable support.



Original model

Without support

With support

[Type]

Auto/manual

Auto: Supports are automatically generated by the software based on threshold angles.

Manual: Supports are only generated on enforcer faces (as described earlier in "Support painting").

Tree/normal support



Tree support



Normal support

[Threshold angle]

This setting determines the angle at which supports are generated for overhangs.



[On build plate only]

Support structures are generated only between the platform and the model, not within the model itself.



Original model

On build plate only: Off

On build plate only: On

[Others]



[Skirt]

[Skirt loops]

Before printing the model, a line or a series of loops is printed around the model's outer perimeter without making direct contact, known as a skirt. Example:

Example:



Purpose:

- Clean the Nozzle: Extrude the residual waste, ensuring a clean nozzle before actual printing.
- Prime the Nozzle: Pre-fill the nozzle for smoother subsequent extrusions.
- Indicate Orientation: Serve as a visual reference for model orientation and size.

For most prints, using 1-2 skirt loops is typically sufficient.

[Skirt height]

The number of skirt layers printed before the main print starts.



[Brim]

The brim refers to one or more additional layers of material printed directly attached to the base of the model.



Purpose: The primary function of a brim is to enhance adhesion during printing by increasing the model's contact area with the build plate. While it serves several purposes similar to the skirt, the key distinction lies in Brim's direct contact with the model, requiring manual removal post-printing. Typically set as a single layer with a width of 5 - 8 mm, this parameter can be adjusted based on the model size and specific adhesion needs.

[Printing Method]

After setting the parameters, preview the model's printing status using the adjustment bars on the right and bottom.



Bottom adjustment bar

Right adjustment bar: Preview printing at different heights. Bottom adjustment bar: Preview printing at different positions on the current layer.

After confirming that the preview is correct, you can export the file to a USB drive and insert it into the printer to start printing. Alternatively, you can connect your printer to upload the file directly for immediate printing.



[Device Connection]

- 1. Click the $\overline{}$ button in the Prepare menu to open the connection window.
- 2. Select the appropriate host type that matches your printer. For example, if you are using the Centauri Carbon, choose "Elegoo Link."
- 3. Enter the IP address of the connected printer, which can be found on the printer's display. Make sure your computer is connected to the same network as the printer.
- 4. Click OK to complete the connection process.

🙃 😁 Prepare	😂 Preview	안 Device	🗉 Project			Slice plate	
Printer		<u>0-</u> 0	·· 🕅 🖩 🖉 🖾	818 BB 🗮	00		
~ Elegoo Centauri Carbo	n 0.4 nozzle	2 8	1				
Bed type ~ Textured I	PEI Plate						
((() Filament	(((+	((- <u>-</u>	Physical Printer				×
1 V Elegoo PLA			Save Machine as				
Process Global Obje	ects Advanced		Elegoo Centauri Carbon	0.4 nozzle - Copy			
~ 0.20mm Standard (@Elegoo CC 0.4 nozzle	BQ	Print Host upload			-2	- 1
Quality Strength Sp	eed Support Other	s Notes	Host Type:	~ Elegoo Link		- 2	
E Layer height			Hostname, IP or URL:	192.168.0.118	rest	5	
Layer height	0.2 n	ım	Device UI:				
First layer height	0.2 n	nm	API Key / Password:				
Line width			HTTPS CA File:		🛜 Browse		
Default	0.42 mm or	%	Ignore HTTPS certificate revocation checks:				
First layer	0.5 mm oi	%					
Outer wall	0.42 mm or	%	HITPS CATILE IS OPTIONAL. IT IS ONLY REEDED IT YOU USE HITPS WITH a self-signed certificate.				
Inner wall	0.45 mm or	%				ОК	
Top surface	0.42 mm or	%					.4